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RFP ADDENDUM #2 - ATTACHMENT A - CITY OF AUBURN SOLID WASTE COLLECTION RFP 

RESPONSE TO RFP QUESTIONS 

February 28, 2020 

 Section Hauler Question/Comment Response  Action 

1.  RFP 

Section 

Form 2 

Recology Would the City consider removing or narrowing the miscellaneous fees in Form 2a 
(except for compost service and contamination fees)?  Increasingly, some contractors 
are submitting very low base bids, with the intention of using technology 
to aggressively charge ancillary service fees or extras to make up revenue shortfall.  

Customer experience is improved when ancillary fees are minimized. Ancillary fees 
often result in fluctuating invoices, which creates the customer perception that rates 
are misleading.  As noted during the RFP process thus far, “rates are very important to 
Auburn customers.”  We believe this means that rates should be appropriate for the 
work performed, as well as consistent.   

Minimizing extra fees would require all proposers to provide a clear, straightforward 
cost for services that would provide consistency for customers and protect them 
from unusually high bills and the inability to budget for a routine fixed expense.  It 
would also reduce a contractor’s ability to “nickel and dime” customers for additional 
services over the course of a ten year contract.  Any extra fees the contractor and City 
deem necessary could be discussed during the contract negotiation period. 

The City has reviewed the ancillary/miscellaneous service items on Form 2 

and has confirmed that the range of items is appropriate to the City’s 

collection system.  In staff’s experience, the existing contractor has not 

excessively charged ancillary fees and has generally provided the 

appropriate documents (e.g. photos) to support those charges. 

No change. 

2.  RFP 

General 

Cedar 

Grove 
Will the City be planning any tours to proposed facilities as is often done with recycling 

facilities? If not, the City should consider requesting videos, pictures, and site plans to 

gain full understanding of a proposed compost facility and their operations. 

Perhaps.  The City’s evaluation committee will review proposals and may 

choose to tour one or more proponent or subcontractor facilities. 

No change. 

3.  RFP 

General 

Cedar 

Grove 
Does the City plan to modify language in negotiations after the RFP process, such as the 

Change in Law Language for organics processing? If so, proposed processors should be 

notified in order to re-evaluate capacity certifications and other commitments. 

The RFP process is used to select a finalist with which to complete a contract 

for Council consideration.  The City has the latitude in an RFP process to 

make mutually-agreeable adjustments to the final contract to tailor the 

contract to address aspects of the finalist’s proposal that the City prefers to 

memorialize in contract language. 

The finalist’s subcontractors are not party to the resulting contract and are 

the sole responsibility of the contractor.  Any arrangements for notifications 

between the contractor and subcontractor must be performed by those two 

parties and will not be provided by the City. 

No change. 

4.  RFP, C.1. Cedar 

Grove 
The RFP requires proposers to “fully” describe proposed compostables processing 

facilities. How will the City evaluate these facilities in light of this requirement? Should 

the evaluation include basic information about a proposed facility including selected 

compost technology, annual throughput, emissions and controls, contamination 

removal and other environmental mitigation technology?  Compost processing has 

Proponents should address the various aspects of their proposal as 

completely (“fully”) as they deem appropriate to support the City’s 

qualitative scoring of the proponent’s proposal. 

No change. 



 2 

 

come a long way in terms of technology and the RFP could be improved to better 

capture these important advancements. 

5.  RFP, C.1. Cedar 

Grove 

Can the City confirm that a “full” description of a proposed compostables processing 
facility includes permitted annual throughput amounts and actual tonnage processed 
for 2019? This is critical information to understand when evaluating the reliability and 
actual capacity of a facility to be available to handle the City’s material. 

See answer to question #4.  The RFP is not prescriptive to this level, but it is 

in any proponent’s best interests to ensure that they demonstrate to the 

City’s evaluation committee that they have made suitable arrangements 

with a competent subcontractor (or in-house operation) for both 

composting and recycling. 

No change. 

6.  RFP, C.1.; 

Draft 

Contract 

4.1.11 

Cedar 

Grove 

Finished compost can vary significantly in terms of quality and safety similar to 
recyclable material quality/marketability coming from a recycling processing facility. 
The City, therefore, should evaluate proposed compost facilities’ finished product 
reports and/or standards that the facility consistently meets.  For example, most 
commercial compost facilities in Washington are STA certified by the United States 
Composting Council and are required to meet certain standards.  This is another 
important factor when evaluating a proposed facility. As the draft contract dictates, 
preprocessing and screening staff should be considered as well.  See: 
https://www.compostingcouncil.org/page/CompostManufacturersSTA 

Please note that this is a collection contract which includes a composting 

component, not the reverse.  The City evaluation committee will be 

considering a broad array of proposal facets, including many with direct 

customer impacts as well as the efficacy and availability of “back-end” 

processing facilities.  The City will not be attempting to evaluate processing 

facilities based on the level of detail proposed here. 

No change. 

7.  RFP, C.1. Cedar 

Grove 

Like recycling facilities, compost facilities should be evaluated to ensure that collected 
material is remanufactured into marketable finished products.  End markets and 
compost usage is an important consideration when making an informed decision about 
where to send organic material.  To be true recycling, the finished product must be put 
to productive use on the back end. We suggest end market availability and how 
compost from the City would be used as factors to be considered when evaluating 
compost operations. 

We agree that compostable materials should be remanufactured into 

marketable products.  Please see Draft Contract Section 4.1.11 for specific 

requirements.  All proponents agree to those requirements by submitting a 

proposal and must make processing arrangements accordingly. 

No change. 

8.  RFP, C.1. Cedar 

Grove 
Can you please describe the process and criteria for evaluating back-up facilities 

generally as well as back-ups to planned, not yet operational facilities? 

The City’s collection contractor has full responsibility for selection of 

processing facilities (including back-up arrangements).  Failure to fulfill this 

responsibility would potentially subject the contractor to various penalties 

up to and including forfeiture of their performance bond.  The City’s review 

of that proposal element will be limited and based on evaluating whether 

each proponent has reasonably considered and addressed their need to 

ensure access to processing facilities. 

No change. 

9.  Draft 

Contract, 

Section 

5.2.3. 

Cedar 

Grove 

If after contract commencement the winning firm proposes a different compost facility 

with higher costs than the one that was bid and used initially, would there be a pass 

through for those additional costs if the material was sent to the new facility? Would 

the City be able to negotiate directly with another processor?   

It is very unlikely that a pass-through rate increase of that nature would be 

allowed.  It is also unlikely that the City would attempt to negotiate with a 

processor, as it is clearly the contractor’s role to manage their own 

subcontracting process. 

No change. 

10.  Draft 

contact, 

Section 8.9 

Cedar 

Grove 

Can the City confirm that compliance with all applicable laws and regulations would 

include Oregon law? Under OAR 340-093-0040, out of state solid waste must be 

handled according to state of origin standards (for composting those are WAC 173-350-

220). 

The City does not intend to attempt to interpret the application of Oregon 

law to subcontractors of the City’s collection contractor.  The contractor is 

generally required to comply with all local, State and Federal laws and 

regulations. 

No change. 

https://www.compostingcouncil.org/page/CompostManufacturersSTA

